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N O T I C E 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 55th Annual General Meeting of ASSOCIATED CERAMICS LIMITED 
will be held at Factory Office located at Rice Mill Road (Ganja Gali), Chirkunda, Dhanbad - 828202 on 
Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. for the following purposes: - 
 
Ordinary Business: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon 
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditor 
thereon, as laid before this meeting, are hereby considered and adopted.” 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sharad Agarwal (DIN: 00652580), who retires by rotation at this 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment and if thought fit, 
to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Sharad Agarwal (DIN: 
00652580), who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation.” 
 

Special Business: 
 

3. Re-appointment of Mrs. Sumana Bose (DIN: 08305755) as an Independent Director of the 
Company 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, read along with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 17 and any other 
applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as amended from time to 
time, Mrs. Sumana Bose (DIN: 08305755), who was appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company for a term of five (5) consecutive years and who being eligible for re-appointment as an 
Independent Director has given her consent along with a declaration that she meets the criteria for 
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independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice 
in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing her candidature for the office of 
Director and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the 
Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term commencing from 
September 25, 2025 upto September 25, 2030, i.e. upto the retirement date as per the retirement age 
policy for Directors of the Company (both days inclusive).  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee 
thereof ) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 
necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution." 
 

4. Appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 204 and 179(3) and other applicable 
provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Regulation 24A of The SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for time being in force) and circulars issued thereunder from 
time to time, and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, 
M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Kolkata having ICSI Unique Code: 
S2024WB960100 (Peer review certificate: 6789/2025) be and are hereby appointed as the Secretarial 
Auditors for the Company, to hold office for one term of five consecutive years commencing from 
financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, at such remuneration as may be approved by the 
Audit Committee and/or Board of Directors of the Company from time to time, in addition to 
applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out-of-pocket & travelling expenses, at actuals, incurred by 
them in connection with the audit.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby 
authorized to revise/alter/modify/amend the terms and conditions and/or remuneration, from time to 
time, as may be mutually agreed with the Statutory Auditors, during the tenure of their appointment.” 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee 
thereof) or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, be and are hereby jointly and /or severally 
authorized on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 
necessary, desirable and expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”  
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By order of the Board 

  Associated Ceramics Limited 
 

                                                                                                                                               ARUN AGARWAL 
            Date: 27.08.2025                                                                                                        Managing Director 

Place: Kolkata                                                                                                               (DIN: 01660148)
   

Notes: 
 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM (the meeting) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and 

vote on the poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument 
appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 
forty-eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

 
2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 

than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 
3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are requested 

to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

 
4. Brief resume of Directors including those proposed to be appointed/ re-appointed, nature of their expertise 

in specific functional areas, names of Companies in which they hold Directorships and Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships between Directors inter-se as 
stipulated under Regulation 27(2) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 
2015 are annexed hereto. 

 
5. Members are requested to bring their Attendance Slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the 

meeting. 
 

6. In case of Joint Holders attending the meeting, only such Joint Holder who is higher in the order of names 
will be entitled to vote. 

 
7. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice and statement are open for inspection by the 

members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, during Business 
Hours upto the date of the meeting.  

 
8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books shall be closed from Friday, 19th September, 2025 to 

Thursday, 25th September, 2025 (both day inclusive) for determining the names of the members eligible 
for dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at the meeting.  

 
9. Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered against their 

respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its 
registrars and transfer agents cannot act on any request received directly from the members holding shares 
in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised 
only to be Depository Participant by the members. 

 

Page 3 of 113



ASSOCIATED CERAMICS LIMITED 
17, GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE,4TH FLOOR   

KOLKATA – 700013 
PH.NO-033 22367358 

Email: assockd@rediffmail.com 
CIN : L26919WB1970PLC027835 

                                                                   Website:www.associatedceremics.com 
10. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in their 

address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their Demat 
Accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change in their address or 
bank mandates immediately to the Company. 

 
11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 
their Demat Accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company. 

 
12. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 

address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the 
Company electronically. 

 
13. Shareholders are requested to give us their valuable suggestions for improvement of our investor services. 

 
14. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has come out with a Circular Nos. 17/2011 dated 21/04/2011 & 

18/2011 dated 29/04/2011 propagating “Green Initiative” encouraging corporate to serve documents 
through electronic mode. In order to above, those shareholders, who want the Annual Report in electronic 
mode, are requested to send their e-mail address. 

 
15. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made 

thereunder, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to 
those members who have registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with the Depository. 
Members holding shares in Demat form are requested to register their e-mail address with their Depository 
Participant(s) only. Members of the Company, who have registered their e-mail address, are entitled to 
receive such communication in physical form upon request. The notice of AGM, Annual Report and 
Attendance slip are being sent in electronic mode to members whose e-mail ids are registered with the 
Company or the Depository Participant(s). Members who have received the notice of AGM, Annual 
Report and Attendance slip in electronic mode are requested to print the Attendance slip and submit a duly 
filled in Attendance slip at the registration counter to attend. 
 

16. The AGM payment of dividend, if any approved by the members of ensuing Annual General Meeting will 
be made through ECS/NECS mandatory, and the dividend amount would be directly credited to the 
member's respective bank accounts. 

 
 
17. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  
 

I. Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to 
provide members facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means. As an alternative 
to vote physically at the AGM, and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services 
provided by NSDL. 

II. Similarly, Members opting to vote physically can do the same by remaining present at the 
meeting and should not exercise the option for e-voting. However, in case Members cast their 
vote exercising both the options, i.e. physically and e-voting, then votes casted through e-
voting shall be only be taken into consideration and treated valid whereas votes casted 
physically at the meeting shall be treated as invalid.  
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III. The E-voting shall commence from Monday, 22nd September, 2025 at 9:30 A.M (IST) and 

close at Wednesday, 24th September, 2025 AT 5:00 P.M (IST). The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 18th 
September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be 
in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-
off date, being 18th September, 2025. 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin
.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client 
Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the 
OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click 
on login. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer 
or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 
Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
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If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option will 
be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested 
to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing 
my easi username & password. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting 
is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-
Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
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vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is 
also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly. 
 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 
is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 
login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 
registration option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option where the evoting is in progress and also able to 
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Page 7 of 113



ASSOCIATED CERAMICS LIMITED 
17, GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE,4TH FLOOR   

KOLKATA – 700013 
PH.NO-033 22367358 

Email: assockd@rediffmail.com 
CIN : L26919WB1970PLC027835 

                                                                   Website:www.associatedceremics.com 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
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system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email 
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 

on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
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6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
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General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to kirti.sharma2593@yahoo.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can 
also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their 
login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to 
go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Pritam Dutta, 
Assistant Manager at pritamd@nsdl.com / evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions 
set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
assockd@rediffmail.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to assockd@rediffmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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18.The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up Equity Share 
Capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record date) of 18th September, 2025. 
 
19.A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose only. 
 
20.The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register 
of members/depositories as at closing hours of business, on 22nd August, 2025. 
 
21.The shareholders shall have One vote per Equity Share held by them as on the cut-off date (record 
date) of 18th September, 2025. The facility of e-Voting would be provided once for Every Folio / Client 
Id, irrespective of the number of Joint Holders.  
 
22. M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practising Company Secretary (ACS: A41645 and CP No. 
26705) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding Three (3) days from the conclusion of the e-
Voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at least Two (2) witness not in the employment and 
make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the 
Company. 
The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results declared alongwith the 
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the website of NSDL and website of ASSOCIATED 
CERAMICS LIMITED within Two (2) working days of passing of the resolution at the AGM of the 
Company and will be communicated to Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange. 

 
    By order of the Board 

  Associated Ceramics Limited 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                ARUN AGARWAL 
            Date: 27.08.2025                                                                                                         Managing Director 

Place: Kolkata                                                                                                               (DIN: 01660148)
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT U/S 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
As required by Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013; the following explanatory statements sets out all 
material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item No. 3 and 4 of the accompanying notice: 
 
AGENDA NO. 3: Re-appointment of Mrs. Sumana Bose (DIN: 08305755) as an Independent Director of 
the Company: 
 
Mrs. Sumana Bose (DIN: 08305755) is currently an Independent Director of the Company, Member 
of the Audit Committee,  Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') and 
Member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.  
 
Mrs. Sumana Bose (DIN: 08305755) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company by 
the Members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020 for a 
period of five (5) consecutive years commencing from 30th September, 2020 upto 30th September, 
2025 (both days inclusive) and is eligible for re-appointment for a second term on the Board of the 
Company.  
 
The NRC, taking into consideration the skills, expertise and competencies required for the Board in 
the context of the business and sectors of the Company and based on the performance evaluation has 
recommended to the Board that Mrs. Sumana Bose’s qualifications and the rich experience of over 
three decades in the above mentioned areas meets the skills and capabilities required for the role of 
Independent Director of the Company. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the NRC, the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on 27th August, 
2025, has proposed the re-appointment of Mrs. Sumana Bose as an Independent Director of the 
Company for a second term commencing from September 30, 2025 upto September 30, 2030 (both 
days inclusive), not liable to retire by rotation, for the approval of the Members by way of a Special 
Resolution. 
 
The Board is of the opinion that Mrs. Sumana Bose continues to possess the identified core skills, 
expertise and competencies fundamental for effective functioning in his role as an Independent 
Director of the Company and her continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company.  
 
The Company has in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act received a notice from a Member proposing 
his candidature for the office of Director. The Company has received a declaration from Mrs. Sumana 
Bose confirming that she continues to meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 
149(6) of the Act, read with the rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(‘SEBI Listing Regulations’). In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Mrs. 
Sumana Bose has confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or 
may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to discharge her duties.  
 
Mrs. Sumana Bose has also confirmed that she is not debarred from holding the office of Director by 
virtue of any SEBI Order or any such authority pursuant to Circulars dated June 20, 2018 issued by 
BSE Limited pertaining to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment of Directors by the 
listed companies.  
 

Page 13 of 113



ASSOCIATED CERAMICS LIMITED 
17, GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE,4TH FLOOR   

KOLKATA – 700013 
PH.NO-033 22367358 

Email: assockd@rediffmail.com 
CIN : L26919WB1970PLC027835 

                                                                   Website:www.associatedceremics.com 
Further, Mrs. Sumana Bose has confirmed that she is not disqualified from being appointed as 
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as Director in terms of 
Section 152 of the Act, subject to re-appointment by the Members. In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. 
Sumana Bose fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, rules thereunder and the SEBI Listing 
Regulations for re-appointment as an Independent Director and is independent of the Management.  
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, Regulation 17 of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the re-appointment of Mrs. Sumana Bose as an Independent Director is now placed for 
the approval of the Members by a Special Resolution. 
 
The Board commends the Special Resolution set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for 
approval of the Members. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or 
their respective relatives, except Mrs. Sumana Bose and her relatives, are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice. 
Disclosures as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and revised Standard-
2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are annexed to this 
Notice. 
 
AGENDA NO. 4: Appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as 
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company: 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of The Listing Regulations read with SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 and other prevailing circulars and 
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May, 
2025 approved the appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Kolkata 
having ICSI Unique Code: S2024WB960100 (Peer review certificate: 6789/2025) as the Secretarial Auditor of 
the Company, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025-26 to 
financial year 2029-30. The appointment is subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the 55th 
Annual General Meeting. 

 
Information pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

Proposed Fee: 

The fee proposed to Secretarial Auditors shall be decided by the Board. The proposed fee is based on 
knowledge, expertise and industry experience possessed by them. The proposed fee is also in line with the 
industry benchmarks. The fees for any other professional work including statutory certifications and other 
permissible non-audit services will be in addition to the audit fee as mentioned above and will be decided by 
the management in consultation with the Auditors. 

Besides the secretarial audit services, the Company may also obtain certificates from the secretarial auditor 
under various statutory regulations and certifications required by banks, statutory authorities, audit related 
services and other permissible non-secretarial audit services as required from time to time, which they will be 
remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms, as approved by the Board of Directors in consultation with 
the Audit Committee. 

Credentials: Brief profile of secretarial auditor 

CS Kirti Sharma, proprietor of M/s Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Kolkata 
(ACS: 41645, CP: 26705) has over 9 years of post-qualification experience in the field of Secretarial and 
Legal matter of various companies. Exposure in Handling Public, Rights issues, Conducting AGMs, EGMs, 
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Board Meeting, Secretarial Audits, and Financial Audits, well versed with Statutory Compliance under SEBI 
Regulations, Stock Exchange Listing Agreements, FEMA, RBI, ESI, PF, Company Law and related acts and 
also includes compliances under the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 & other Statutory laws applicable 
to the companies, Formation of Companies, e-filings of various Forms with ROC, maintenance of statutory 
records, registers under The Companies Act, 2013, advises/opinions, drafting agreements/MOU’s, mergers, 
acquisitions, compliances and Certifications required by various regulatory bodies for listed & unlisted 
Companies, viz Stock Exchange listing agreements, SEBI Guidelines, Corporate Governance reports, RBI, 
Banks & Financial Institutions, Secretarial Audit report, Secretarial due diligence report to the banks and 
others, liaison with ROC, RBI, Banks, Advocates for any legal matters of the companies. 
 

Rationale for recommendation: 

In accordance with Regulation 24A(1A) of The Listing Regulations, the company obtained confirmation on 
the eligibility criteria and that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditor in terms of the 
SEBI circular dated December 31, 2024. The services to be rendered by M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, Kolkata as Secretarial Auditors is within the purview of the said regulation 
read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024. 
The firm has agreed to the said appointment, and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within 
the limits specified under the Act. The Firm has also provided confirmation that it has subjected itself to the 
peer review process of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and also holds a valid certificate 
issued by the ‘Peer Review Board’ of the ICSI. 

 

The Board recommends the resolution as set out in the Item No. 4 of accompanying notice for the approval of 
members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution.  

None of the Director, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 
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ANNEXURE A 

Details of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the 55th Annual General Meeting 
scheduled to be held on September 25, 2025 

 

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations 2015 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Sharad Agarwal Mrs. Sumana Bose 

DIN 00652580 08305755 

Date of Birth 16/01/1981 18/01/1975 
Date of Appointment 01/07/2015 07/01/2019 

Qualification Graduate in Commerce Graduate in Commerce 
Nature of Expertise Mr. Sharad Agarwal is a graduate in 

Commerce and varied exposure in 
the field of Accounts and Finance.  

Mrs. Sumana Bose has been 
appointed as Independent 
Director of the Company. She 
has team building ability to 
create result oriented work 
culture by infusing the spirit of 
action. She brings value addition 
to the Company.  

Directorships held in 
other Indian public 
companies (other than 
Section 8 companies) 

1. AMAR JYOTI UDYOG LTD 
2. ASSOCIATED GLOBAL 

FINANCE LTD 
3. EXCELLENT MERCHANTS 

PVT LTD 
4. ACCAUTO SALES 

PROMOTION PVT LTD 
5. SUSRI FINANCE PVT LTD 
6. SHARAD INTERNATIONAL 

LTD 
 

- 

Memberships / 
Chairmanships of 
Committees in other 
Company 

 -  - 

Number of Equity 
Shares held in the 
Company 

  2,42,000   - 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 113



ASSOCIATED CERAMICS LIMITED 
17, GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE,4TH FLOOR   

KOLKATA – 700013 
PH.NO-033 22367358 

Email: assockd@rediffmail.com 
CIN : L26919WB1970PLC027835 

                                                                   Website:www.associatedceremics.com 
 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
Annual General Meeting, Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. at Factory Office located 
at Rice Mill Road (Ganja Gali), Chirkunda, Dhanbad – 828202 : 
 

Name of the Shareholder  

Address  

Registered Folio/ DP ID & 
Client ID 

 

No of Shares held  

Name of the Proxy / 
AuthorisedRepresentative, 
if any 

 

 
I / We hereby record my / our presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be 
held on Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. at Factory Office located at Rice Mill Road (Ganja 
Gali), Chirkunda, Dhanbad – 828202. 
 
 
 
 
 
     Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy/ Authorised Representative 
 
Note: The Member/Proxy must bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting, duly completed and signed, 
and hand over the same at the venue entrance. 
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(ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY 
TO BE HELD ON 25TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025) 
 
Name & Registered Address of Sole/First named Member: 
Joint Holders Name (If any): 
Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID:   
No. of Equity Shares Held:  
 
Dear Shareholder, 
 
Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facility: 
Pursuant to Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide E-voting facility to the members to cast their votes 
electronically on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the ANNUAL  GENERAL MEETING (AGM) 
to be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. at Factory Office located at Rice Mill Road 
(Ganja Gali), Chirkunda, Dhanbad – 828202 and at any adjournment thereof.  
The Company has engaged the services of NSDL to provide the e-voting facility. The e-voting facility is 
available at the link www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
The Electronic Voting Particulars are set out below: 
 
EVEN(Electronic Voting Even 
Number) 

User ID PAN / Sequence No. 

   

 
The E-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 
Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On 

22nd September, 2025 at 9:30 A.M.(IST) 24th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M.(IST) 

Please read the instructions mentioned in Point No.17 of the Notice before exercising your vote. 
 
By order of the Board 
For Associated Ceramics Limited 
        
 
 
 
Arun Agarwal       
Managing Director         
(DIN: 01660148) 
Date: 27.08.2025 
Place: Kolkata 
Encl: AGM Notice / Attendance Slip / Proxy Form / Annual Report  
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FORM NO. MGT-11 

Proxy Form 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and  
Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
Name of the Member(s)  
Registered Address  

E-mail ID  
Folio No. / *DP-ID & Client  
*Applicable for Investors holding shares in electronic form. 
I / We, being the member (s) of ……………………. shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint: 
1. Name: Address: 

E-mail Id: Signature: 
Or falling him 
2. Name: Address: 

E-mail Id: Signature: 
Or falling him 
3. Name: Address: 

E-mail Id: Signature: 
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 25th day of September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. at Factory Office 
located at Rice Mill Road (Ganja Gali), Chirkunda, Dhanbad – 828202, and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions as is/are indicated below: 
** I/We wish my/our above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:- 
Ordinary Business: 
Item 
No. 

Resolution(s)  For Against 

1. Ordinary Resolution for Adoption of Financial Statement of Accounts 
for the year ended on 31st March, 2025. 

  

2. Ordinary Resolution to appoint Mr. Sharad Agarwal (DIN: 00652580) 
as Director who retires by rotation. 

  

3. Special Resolution for approval of appointment of Mrs. Sumana Bose 
(DIN: 08305755) as an Independent Director of the Company. 

  

4. Ordinary Resolution to appoint M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company 

  

 
Signed this ………… day of …………. 2025. 
 
 
--------------------------------------  -----------------------------------------  
Signature of Shareholder        Signature of Proxy holder(s): 
 

Affix 
Re.1 
Revenue 
Stamp 
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Notes: 
1. This form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the Company. 

2. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

4. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 
10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy 
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

5. **This is only optional. Please put a ‘x’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the 
Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be 
entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

6. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. 

7. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint 
holders should be stated.  

 

Page 20 of 113



Ganja Gali, factory Chirkunda, Dhanbad, Jharkhand

Page 21 of 113



Map data ©2022 500 m 

Page 22 of 113



ASSOCIATED CERAMICS LIMITED 
                                                                                           17, GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE, 4TH FLOOR    

KOLKATA – 700013 
PH.NO-033 22367358 

Email: assockd@rediffmail.com 
CIN : L26919WB1970PLC027835 

                                                                             Website :www.associatedceremics.com 
 

DIRECTORS' REPORT  
TO  
THE MEMBERS 
 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report together with the Audited 

Accounts of the Company for the Year ended March 31st, 2025. 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
    
The company's financial performance for the year under review along with previous 

year's figures is given hereunder:                                 

                          (Rs. In lakhs)        
 
  

2. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

           No amount has been transferred to reserves. 
 

3. OPERATIONAL REVIEW: 

During the year under review the turnover of the Company decreased from Rs 4055.00 

lakhs to Rs 4194.26 lakhs of the last year. The solar power project of the Company has 

generated revenue of Rs. 50.51 lakhs as against Rs. 38.90 lakhs compared to previous 

year. The profit/ (loss) before Tax for the year was Rs 330.55 lakhs as against Rs 172.42 

lakhs in the previous year. Thus, Profit after tax for the year was Rs 215.90 lakhs as 

against profit of Rs 85.66 lakhs in the previous year.  

The Management of the company is hopeful in the next coming years the performance of 

the company will grow if similar growth is maintained.  

Particulars 
31st March, 2025 

(Rs.) 
31st March, 2024 

(Rs.) 

Revenue From operations  4194.26 4055.00 

Other Income  137.46 74.09 

Total Revenue 4331.71 4129.09 

Total Expense 4001.16 3956.67 

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 330.55 172.42 
Add: Exceptional item - - 
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 330.55 172.42 
Tax Expenses   
Current Tax 79.70 56.00 
Deferred Tax 34.95 30.77 
Tax for earlier years - - 
Profit After Tax 215.90 85.66 
Transfer To General Reserve  - - 
Adjustment relating to Fixed Asset - - 
Assessed Tax for Earlier Years - - 
Brought Forward from Earlier Years 1918.16 1832.50 
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 2130.35 1918.16 
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4. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

The Company’s Profit before tax increased to Rs 330.55 lakhs as against profit of Rs 

172.42 lakhs. 

Apart from above there was no material changes and commitments affecting the 

financial position of the company occurred between end of the financial year to which 

this financial statement relates and the date of the report. 

   

5. DIVIDEND: 

Your Directors want to strengthen the company more and accordingly do not recommend 

any dividend for the year. 

 
6. SHARE CAPITAL: 

The paid-up capital as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 228.48 lakhs, out of total issued capital, 

equity capital comprises of Rs 204.47 lakhs and Rs.24.01 lakhs the amount of Forfeited 

Shares. During the year under review, the Company has neither issued any right shares 

or bonus shares nor buyback the equity share to/from the shareholders. The company 

has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat 

equity. 

 
7. FINANCE: 

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2025 was Rs 187.71 lakhs. The company 

continues to focus on judicious management of its working capital, Receivables, 

inventories and other working capital parameters were kept under strict check through 

continuous monitoring. 

 
8. DEPOSITS: 

Your Company has neither accepted nor renew any deposit from the public. Further the 

acceptance of deposits is governed by the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India 

and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 
9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of 

section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

The detail of the investments made by company is given in the notes to the financial 

statements.  
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10. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and 

complexity of its operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is 

defined by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Statutory Auditor of the 

Company. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function 

reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board & to the Chairman & 

Managing Director. 

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control 

system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures 

and policies at all locations of the Company. 

Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action 

in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 

observations and recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are presented to 

the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

11.  EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Extract of Annual Return in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return 

in the prescribed format can be accessed at: www.associatedceremics.com 

 

12.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN   

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT-GO: 

 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

 
a) Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are conducted in the manner 

whereby optimum utilization and maximum possible savings of energy is 

achieved. 

b) No specific investment has been made in reduction in energy consumption. 

c) As the impact of measures taken for conservation and optimum utilization of 

energy are not quantitative, its impact on cost cannot be stated accurately. 

d) The information under Sec. 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 

8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is given in ANNEXURE – I which 

forms part of this report.  

 

13. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
 

Company's products are manufactured by using in-house know how and no outside  

technology is being used for manufacturing activities. Therefore, no technology 
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absorption is required. The Company constantly strives for maintenance and 

improvement in quality of its products. 

 

14. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT-GO: 
 

 During the period under review the foreign exchange  

 Earnings was RS 27,14,411.84/- (PY RS 2,60,546.42/-)    

 Outgo was RS 2,14,29,495.00 /- (PY RS1,52,419.82/-)  

 
15.  DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 

 

1. Mr. Sharad Agarwal – Chief Financial Officer 

2. Mr. Arun Agarwal    – Managing Director 

3. Mr. Sharad Agarwal – Director 

4. Mr. Bimal Agarwal – Director (upto 01.06.2025) 

5. Mr. Nitesh Singh - Independent Director 

6. Mr. Abhishek Agarwal - Independent Director 

7. Mrs. Sumona Bose - Independent Director 

8. Mrs. Suchika Marda – Company Secretary  

 

Mr. Nitesh Singh was appointed as an Independent Director in the company w.e.f 30th 

May, 2024. 

The Board regretfully report the sad demise of Mr. Bimal Agarwal, Promoter and 

Executive Director of the Company, on 1st day of June, 2025. The Board further express 

their heartfelt condolences for his untimely death and wishes to put on record their 

sincere and deep appreciation for his invaluable guidance and contribution from time to 

time in build no up the company's growth.  

 

16.  INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

All independent directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of 

independence as laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 

(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

17.  MEETINGS:  

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. 

During the year Nine (9) Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap 

between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
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(Board Meeting Dates- 25.04.2024, 30.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 04.09.2024, 30.09.2024, 

14.11.2024, 23.12.2024, 10.02.2025 and 24.03.2025) 

 

18.  DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state 

that: 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed. 

b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 

the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under 

review. 

c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 

and other irregularities. 

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

e) The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions 

of all applicable laws and that such system was adequate and operating 

effectively; and 

The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 

19.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

All Related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on 

an arms length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no material 

significant related party transactions made by the Company during the year that would 

have required shareholder approval. All related party transactions are reported to the 

Audit Committee. Prior approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on a yearly basis 

for the transactions which are planned and/ or repetitive in nature and omnibus 

approvals are taken within limits laid down for unforeseen transactions. The disclosure 

under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. 

 

The details of transactions entered into during the year are given in Note No. 32 to 

notes on accounts. 
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Consequently, disclosure in Form AOC-2 pursuant to Rule 18(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report as Annexure- II. 

 

20.   DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES COMPANIES OR JOINT VENTURES: 

During the period under review, there were no companies who become or ceased to be 

its associate or Joint ventures. Further the company has no subsidiary / joint venture 

company. 

 

21.  AUDITOR’S REPORT: 

The observation made in the Auditors' Report read together with relevant notes thereon 

are self explanatory and hence there is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or 

disclaimer made by the auditor in their report. Accordingly, no explanations or comments 

are required by the Board under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

22.  AUDITORS: 

 

M/s. Sanjay Gulab & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No. 

: 012598N) was re-appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office from 

the conclusion of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held in the year 2023 till the conclusion 

of the AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2028, 

 

Further the company has received a certificate from M/s. Sanjay Gulab & Co., 

Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No. : 012598N) to the effect 

that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits prescribed under section 

141(3) of The Companies Act, 2013.  

 

23.  ADOPTION OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 

The Company adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 during the year for preparation 

and presentation of these Financial Statements. Consequently, the Financial Statements 

of the previous year have to be restated to confirm to the provisions of Ind AS. The 

corresponding reconciliation and description of the effects of this transition from the 

provisions of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005 has been provided 

under Note 37 to the Financial Statements. 
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24.  AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee consists of:  

SI. No.  Name Designation 

1. ABHISHEK AGARWAL Chairman 

2. NITESH SINGH (w.e.f. 30.05.2024) Member 

3. SUMANA BOSE Member 

 

During the year Four (4) Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. All the 

recommendation made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors. 

The Powers and role of the Audit Committee are included in Corporate Governance Report 

forming part of this Annual Report. 

25.  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management personnel 
and to confirm their terms of appointment including their remuneration. 

The Committee consists of : 

SI. No. Name Designation 

1. ABHISHEK AGARWAL Chairman 

2. NITESH SINGH (w.e.f. 30.05.2024) Member 

3. SUMANA BOSE Member 

 

26. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Committee consists of : 

 

SI. No. Name Designation 

1. ABHISHEK AGARWAL Chairman 

2. NITESH SINGH (w.e.f. 30.05.2024) Member 

3. SUMANA BOSE Member 
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27. SECRETARIAL AUDIT: 

Pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has 

appointed M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, Peer Reviewed Practicing Company Secretary 

to undertake secretarial audit of the Company. The report of the secretarial audit is 

annexed as ANNEXURE-III. The secretarial audit report doesn’t contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark. However, the observation of the secretarial 

auditor were noted by Board to ensure due compliance. 

 
28. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 

During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with workers 

and employees at all levels. 

 

29. BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT: 

Pursuant to section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has constituted 

a business risk management committee and the said committee reviewed and assessed 

that there no such element of risk exists which may threaten the existence of the 

company. 

 
30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY: 

The Company considers Corporate Social Responsibility as an important aspect of doing 

business. As a good corporate citizen, the Company initiated appropriate action towards 

various social causes as soon as the provision become applicable to the Company during 

the period. 

Accordingly, the said function is discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company as adopted by the Board of 

Directors is available on Company’s website www.associatedceremics.com 

During the year ended 31st March, 2025, your Company has not spent any amount in 

CSR activities as defined under schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as it is not 

applicable for the FY 2024-2025. 

 

31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS: 

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 

tribunals which impacts the going concern status of the company and affects the 

company’s operations in the future. 
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32. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

REPORTS 

The Company is in compliance with Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub – 

regulation (2) of regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulations , 2015. 

 

33. CODE OF CONDUCT: 

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the 

Members of the Board and all employees in the course of day to day business operations 

of the company. The Company believes in “Zero Tolerance” against bribery, corruption 

and unethical dealings / behaviors of any form and the Board has laid down the 

directives to counter such acts. The code laid down by the Board is known as “code of 

business conduct” which forms an Appendix to the Code. The Code has been posted on 

the Company’s website.  

 

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be 

followed by the Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in 

particular on matters relating to integrity in the work place, in business practices and in 

dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through examples on the expected 

behavior from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure. 

 

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed 

compliance with the Code. All Management Staff were given appropriate training in this 

regard. 

 

34. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Fraud and Risk Management Policy to deal 

with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. 

In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion and in line with our 

vision of being one of the most respected companies in India, the Company is committed 

to the high standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholder responsibility.  

The Company has a Fraud Risk and Management Policy to deal with instances of fraud 

and mismanagement, if any. The FRM Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is 

maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also that no discrimination will be meted out 

to any person for a genuinely raised concern. 

A high-level Committee has been constituted which looks into the complaints raised. The 

Committee reports to the Audit Committee and the Board. 
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35. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a 

view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the 

Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and 

prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated 

employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to 

the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is 

responsible for implementation of the Code. 

All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the 

Code. 

 

36. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN END OF THE FINANCIAL 

YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 

REPORT: 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company 

occurred between end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and 

the date of the report. 

 

37. REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management 

personnel and to confirm their terms of appointment including their remuneration.  

 

38. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: [Rule 5(2) & Rule 5(1)]  

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of 

employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of 

the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled 

thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which is available for 

inspection by the members at the Registered office of the company during business 

hours on working days of the company up to the date of ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. If any member is interested in inspecting the same, such member may write to 

the company secretary in advance. 
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a. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of 

the employees of the company for the financial year  

 Particulars Ratio To Median 
Remuneration 

DIRECTOR  
ARUN AGARWAL 13.54 
BIMAL AGARWAL 3.38 
SHARAD AGARWAL 11.28 
ABHISHEK AGARWAL NIL 
SUMONA BOSE NIL 
NITESH NIL 

 
b. The Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the company.  

 
Director , Chief executive officer , Chief financial officer  
and  Company secretary 

% increase in 
remuneration in the 
financial year  

Arun Agarwal (Managing Director) 
Sharad Agarwal (CFO) 
Suchika Marda (CS) 

-- 
-- 
-- 

 
 
c.    The Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 

financial year 2024-2025 – There was 7.89 % increment in the median remuneration of 

employees during the financial year 2024- 2025.  

 

d. The Number of permanent employees in the rolls of the Company - 107 in 2025 

(excluding Directors) 

 

e.    The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration 

and company performances:  

On an average the employees received no annual increment in remuneration. The increase 

in remuneration is in line with the market trend. In order to ensure that remuneration 

reflects company performance, the performance pay is also linked to organization 

performance, apart from an individual’s performance. The Company’s product is basically 

related to the steel industry. At present the steel industry is going through a downward 

trend with several leading houses shutting down their units for cost reduction.  

 
f.    Comparison of remuneration of the key managerial personnel against the 

performance of the company  

Aggregate remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel 
in FY 24-25 ( Rs in lacs )  

150.00 

Revenue ( Rs in lacs )  4194.26 
Remuneration of KMP ( as % of revenue )  3.58 
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX ( PBT ) ( RS IN LACS ) 330.55 
Remuneration of KMP ( as % of PBT )  45.38 

 
g.  MARKET PRICE DATA: High-Low During each month in the last Financial Year (Rs): 

The details of monthly highest and lowest closing quotations of the equity shares 

of the Company has obtained Trading approval from BSE Limited during the 

financial year 2024-25 are as under :   

BSE Ltd. 
Month High Low 

April’ 2024 669.10 280.30 
May’ 2024 376.45 283.00 
June’ 2024 364.60 248.95 
July’ 2024 326.20 265.70 
August’ 2024 342.50 287.45 
September’ 2024 325.90 274.65 
October’ 2024 321.85 258.00 
November’ 2024 318.00 259.95 
December’ 2024 320.00 225.90 
January’ 2025 250.25 197.60 
February’ 2025 238.20 210.50 
March’ 2025 254.65 190.00 

 

h.    Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the 

percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 

point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 

managerial remuneration:  

percentile increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel : 8.00% 

Percentile increase in the managerial remuneration was 0% for the year.  

 

j.     Comparison of each remuneration of the key managerial personnel   against the    

        performance of the company: 

 ARUN 
AGARWAL  
(Managing 
Director)  

SHARAD 
AGARWAL 
(Director)   

BIMAL 
AGARWAL  
(Director)   

REMUNERATION IN FY 
23-24 (RS IN LACS)  

72 60 18 

REVENUE  4194.26 
REMUNERATION AS A % 
OF REVENUE 

1.72 1.43 0.43 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  
(PBT) (RS IN LACS)  

330.55 

REMUNERATION AS % OF 
PBT  21.78 18.15 5.45 
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k.     The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the        

        Directors  

Apart from remuneration paid to the executive directors no remuneration is paid to the      

non-executive directors of the company.  

 

l.      The ratio of remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees     

         who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid     

         director during the year  

         NONE  

 

m.    Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the      

        company  

        The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.  

 
39.  DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE       

        (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a 

policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line 

with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under for prevention and 

redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. 

 

40. INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

No application or proceeding was made or pending against the Company under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year under review. 

 

41. VARIATION IN VALUATION 

During the year under review, there was no instance of one-time settlement with any 

bank or financial institution necessitating disclosure or reporting in respect of difference 

in valuation done by the Company. 
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42. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

The Company and its Directors wish to extend their sincerest thanks to the Members of 

the Company, Bankers, Local Bodies, Customers, Executives, Staff and workers at all 

levels for their continuous cooperation and assistance. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 

     ARUN AGARWAL          SHARAD AGARWAL 
     DIN: 01660148     DIN: 00652580 

                                             MANAGING DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR 
 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 30.05.2025 
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ANNEXURE-I 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FOR THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR 2024-25 

  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                 For and on   behalf of the Board of Directors 
                                                                                    

 
 
 
 

ARUN AGARWAL          SHARAD AGARWAL 
     DIN: 01660148     DIN: 00652580 

                                             MANAGING DIRECTOR                            DIRECTOR 
    

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30/05/2025 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 POWER & FUEL 
CONSUMTION  

CURRENT 
YEAR 2025 

PREVIOUS 
YEAR 2024 

1 ELECTRICITY    
PURCHASED    
UNIT ( KWH )  1217312 1084289 
TOTAL AMOUNT ( RS In 
lakhs)  78.48 85.87 

RATE / UNIT ( RS )  6.45 7.92 
   
OWN GENERATION    
( THROUGH DIESEL )    

UNIT ( KWH )  122525 543136 
UNIT PER LITRE OF 
DIESEL   

        13.92  17.02 

COST / UNIT ( RS )            8.01  5.46 
    

2 COAL (Pet coke)   
QUANTITY IN M.T    1,031.67    1,005.88  
TOTAL COST ( RS )        204.03        204.04  
COST / UNIT ( RS )  19777 20285 

    
3 FURNANCE OIL    

QUANTITY IN M.T  NIL NIL 
TOTAL COST ( RS )  NIL NIL 
COST / UNIT ( RS )  NIL NIL 

    
 

 CONSUMPTION PER 
UNIT OF PRODUCTION 

  

 ELECTRICITY       123.93          92.37  
 COAL           0.13            0.13  
 FURNANCE OIL  NIL NIL 
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ANNEXURE II 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 

1.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 
SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

        Name (s) of the related party & nature of 
relationship 

NIL 

       Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 
        Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
NIL 

       Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including the value, if any 

NIL 

        Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NIL 

         Date of approval by the Board NIL 
        Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 
       Date on which the special resolution was passed 

in General meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188 

NIL 

 
 

2.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 
(a) 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
       a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
IPITATA COMMOTRADE 
PVT. LTD. 
NATURE:  
ASSOCIATE & GROUP 
COMPANY 

      b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction UNSECURED LOAN 
       c) Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
1 year 

      d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including the value, if any 

Value : Rs. 4,00,00,000 

       e) Date of approval by the Board 30.05.2017 
        f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil, Repaid Rs. 

2,50,00,000 and Interest 
Rs. 11,48,054 
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(b) 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
       a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
SHARAD REFRACTORIES 
PVT. LTD. 
NATURE:  
ASSOCIATE & GROUP 
COMPANY 

      b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction SALE OF GOODS OR 
SERVICES 

       c) Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

N.A. 

      d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including the value, if any 

RS. 50,33,001 

       e) Date of approval by the Board 
 

        f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 
 
(c) 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

       a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 
relationship 

ARUN AGARWAL 
NATURE:MANAGING 
DIRECTOR 

      b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction REMUNERATION 
       c) Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
-- 

      d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including the value, if any 

RS. 72,00,000 

       e) Date of approval by the Board 13/08/2022 
        f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

 
(d) 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
       a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
BIMAL AGARWAL 
NATURE: Executive 
DIRECTOR 

      b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction REMUNERATION 
       c) Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
-- 

      d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including the value, if any 

RS. 18,00,000 

       e) Date of approval by the Board 01/07/2015 
        f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

 
(e)  

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
       a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
SHARAD AGARWAL 
NATURE: Executive 
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DIRECTOR 
      b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction REMUNERATION 
       c) Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
-- 

      d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transaction including the value, if any 

RS. 60,00,000 

       e) Date of approval by the Board 13/08/2022 
        f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 Associated Ceramics Ltd. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     ARUN AGARWAL  SHARAD AGARWAL 
   DIN: 01660148  DIN: 00652580 

      MANAGING DIRECTOR                          DIRECTOR 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30/05/2025  
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"ANNEXURE - TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT" 
 

"CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” 
 

Your Company believes in adopting best practices of corporate governance. The 
Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and 
ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all 
stakeholders including society at large. 

As per regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a separate section on corporate 
governance practices followed by your Company, together with a certificate from 
M/s. Sanjay Gulab & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 
012598N), on compliance with corporate governance norms. 

1) BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

i) We believe that our Board needs to have an appropriate mix of executive 
and independent directors to maintain its independence, and separate its 
functions of governance and management. Our Board consists of six 
directors three of whom are executive or whole time directors, while the 
remaining three are independent directors. The composition of the Board is 
in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with 
Section 149 of the Act. There is a Cessation of Directorship of Late Bimal 
Agarwal due to his demise on 1st June, 2025. Time reminiscing the 
invaluable contributions and achievements, of Late Bimal Agarwal as a  
valued member of the board.   

ii) None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten 
public companies. Further none of them is a member of more than ten 
committees or chairman of more than five committees across all the public 
companies in which he/she is a Director. None of the Directors are related 
to each other. 

iii) Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 
149(6) of the Act. The maximum tenure of independent directors is in 
compliance with the Act. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that 
they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act. 

iv) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance 
at Board Meetings held during the year and the number of Directorships 
and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other public 
companies as on March 31, 2025 are given herein below: 
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Name of the 
Director 

Designatio
n 

Number 
of board 
meetings 

during 
the year  
2024-25 

Whether 
attende
d last 
AGM 

held on 
30th 

Septem
ber, 
2024 

No of other 
Directorshi
p in other 

Companies 

Number of 
Committee'
s2 position 

held in 
other 
Public 

Companies 

Held 
Attend

ed 
Publi

c 
Privat

e 
Chairm

an 
Mem
ber 

ARUN 
AGARWAL 

Managing 
Director cum 

Chairman 
9 9 YES 3 5 NIL NIL 

BIMAL 
AGARWAL (upto 
01.06.2025) 
      

Executive 
Director 9 9 YES 3 6 NIL NIL 

SHARAD 
AGARWAL 

Executive 
Director 

9 9 YES 3 3 NIL NIL 

SUMANA BOSE 
Independent 

Director 
9 9 YES - - NIL NIL 

NITESH SINGH 
Independent 

Director 9 9 YES 5 - 3 5 

ABHISHEK 
AGARWAL 

Independent 
Director 9 9 YES - - NIL NIL 

1. Memberships of the Directors in various Committees are within the permissible 
limits of the Listing Regulations. 

2. Includes Membership of Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committees of 
other Indian Public Limited Companies only. 

v) Nine Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two 
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.  

The dates on which the said meetings were held: 25.04.2024, 30.05.2024, 
14.08.2024, 04.09.2024, 30.09.2024, 14.11.2024, 23.12.2024, 10.02.2025 
and 24.03.2025. 

Date 
ARUN 
AGARWAL

BIMAL 
AGARWAL 

SHARAD 
AGARWAL

SUMANA 
BOSE 

NITESH 
SINGH 
(w.e.f. 
30.05.2024) 

ABHISHEK 
AGARWAL 

25.04.2024     -  
30.05.2024       
14.08.2024       
04.09.2024       
30.09.2024       
14.11.2024       
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The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.  

                            = Present in Meeting    = Absent in Meeting 

vi) The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are 
disclosed on the website of the Company. During the year, one meeting of 
the Independent Directors were held on 24.03.2025. The Independent 
Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-independent 
directors, Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole. 

vii) The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable 
to the Company, prepared by the Company. 

2) COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

A) AUDIT COMMITTEE  

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of 
Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 177 of the Act. The 
Composition procedure, role/function of the Audit Committee comply with the 
requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. During the year under review 4 (Four) meetings of the Audit 
Committee were held on 30.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 14.11.2024 and 10.02.2025. 
The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The brief terms of 
reference of the Audit Committee includes the following:  

1. Overseeing the Company's financial report process and disclosure of its 
financial information.   

2. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial results before 
submission to the Board for approval. 

3. Disclosure with Statutory and Internal auditors about the nature and scope of 
audit and their observations. 

4. Investigate any matter referred to by the Board. 
5. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and 

auditors’ report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with 
particular reference to : 
i) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement 

to be included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 
of section 134 of the Act. 

ii) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the 
same. 

iii)  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management. 

23.12.2024       
10.02.2025       
24.03.2025       

% of 
Attendance 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
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iv)  Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of 
audit findings. 

v)  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements. 

vi)  Disclosure of any related party transactions. 
vii) Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

6. Reviewing, the information required as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 

7. The Composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended 
by its members : 

Members 
Designat

ion 
Category 

Numbers of 
Meetings 
Attended 

Held Attende
d 

ABHISHEK AGARWAL 
Chairman 

Non Executive & 
Independent 

4 4 

SUMONA BOSE Member Non Executive & 
Independent 

4 4 

NITESH SINGH Member Non Executive & 
Independent 

4 4 

Date 
ABHISHEK 
AGARWAL 

SUMONA BOSE NITESH SINGH 

Chairman Member Member 
30.05.2024    
14.08.2024    
14.11.2024    
10.02.2025    

% of 
Attendance 

100% 100% 100% 

 = Present in Meeting    = Absent in Meeting 

B) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholders' relationship committee is constituted with the provision of 
Regulation 20 of SEBI listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the Co. Act, 
2013.The Committee is to look into the specific Complaints received from the 
Shareholders of the Company. Investor grievances are resolved by the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee who operates subject to the overall 
supervision of the Board. The Committee meets on the requirement basis during 
the financial year to monitor and review the matters relating to investor 
grievances. During the year under review 2 (two) meeting of the Shareholders 
Relationship Committee were held on 04.09.2024 and 10.02.2025. The company 
had not received any complaints from its investors during the financial year 2024-
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25. At present there are no complaints pending to be resolved before SEBI 
SCORES. 

The Composition of the said Committee is as follows:      

Members 
Designati

on 
Category 

Numbers of 
Meetings 
Attended 

Held 
Attend

ed 
ABHISHEK 
AGARWAL 

Chairman 
Non Executive & 

Independent 
2 2 

SUMONA BOSE Member Non Executive & 
Independent 

2 2 

NITESH SINGH  Member Non Executive & 
Independent 

2 2 

Date 
ABHISHEK 
AGARWAL 

SUMONA BOSE NITESH SINGH 

Chairman Member Member 

04.09.2024    

10.02.2025    

% of 
Attendance 100% 100% 

100% 

             = Present in Meeting    = Absent in Meeting 

C) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:  

The Nomination and Remuneration committee is constituted with the provision of 
Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the Co. Act, 
2013. The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors is decided by the Board of 
Directors as authorized by the Articles of Association of the Company and within 
the limits set out in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The committee 
evaluates and approves the appointment and remuneration of senior executives, 
the Company’s remuneration plan, annual salary increase principles and budgets, 
annual and long term incentive plans of the Company, policies and programs such 
as succession planning, employment agreements, severance agreements and any 
other benefits. During the year 3 (three) meetings of the remuneration committee 
was held on 30.05.2024, 04.09.2024 and 14.11.2024. 
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The Composition of the said Committee is as follows:   

   Members Designation Category 

Numbers of 
Meetings 
Attended 

Held 
Attend

ed 
ABHISHEK 
AGARWAL 

Chairman 
Non- Executive & 

Independent 
3 3 

SUMONA BOSE 
Member 

Non- Executive & 
Independent 3 3 

NITESH SINGH 
Member 

Non- Executive & 
Independent 3 3 

Date 
ABHISHEK 
AGARWAL 

SUMONA BOSE NITESH SINGH 

Chairman Member Member 
30.05.2024    
04.09.2024    
14.11.2024    

% of 
Attendance 

100% 100% 
 

100% 

 = Present in Meeting    = Absent in Meeting 

The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors is determined by 
the Nomination and Remuneration committee. An indicative list of factors that 
may be evaluated include participation and contribution by a director, 
commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective 
management of relationship with stakeholders, integrity and maintenance of 
confidentiality and independence of behavior and judgement. 

Details of remuneration and sitting fees paid to Directors: 

Remuneration policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance 
culture. It enables the Company to attract, retain and motivate employees to 
achieve results. The remuneration policy supports such mobility through pay 
models that are compliant to local regulations. The Company pays remuneration 
by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances to its Managing Director 
and the Executive Directors, subjected to the overall ceiling as stipulated in the 
Companies Act, 2013. Given below are the details of Remuneration paid to 
Executive Director & Key Managerial Personal (KMP) Viz., Managing Director, 
Company Secretary & CFO: 
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Name of Executive 
director & KMP 

Designation 

Total Salary 
paid during 

April, 2024 to 
March, 2025 

Others 

Arun Agarwal Managing Director 72,00,000 00 
Bimal Agarwal Executive Director 18,00,000 00 
Sharad Agarwal Executive Director 60,00,000 00 
Compliance Officer: 

3) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

(a) (i) The details of Annual General Meetings held in the last three years are 
as under:- 

Financial 

Year 

Date Time Venue 

2021-2022 29.09.2022 
1:00 
P.M. 

RICE MILL ROAD (GANJA GALI) 
CHIRKUNDA, DHANBAD 

2022-2023 14.08.2023 
3:00 
P.M. 

RICE MILL ROAD (GANJA GALI) 
CHIRKUNDA, DHANBAD-828202 

2023-2024 30.09.2024 
3:00 
P.M. 

RICE MILL ROAD (GANJA GALI) 
CHIRKUNDA, DHANBAD-828202 

 

(ii)  Details of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held in the last three years: NA 

(b) Whether any special resolutions passed in the previous 3 AGMs/EGMs:   

Date of AGM Agenda 

14.08.2023 Increasing Borrowing Limits of the Board of Directors of 
the Company under Section 180 of the Companies Act, 
2013 

29.09.2022 To increase remuneration of Mr. ArunAgarwal, Managing 
Director (DIN : 01660148) 

29.09.2022 To increase remuneration of Mr. Sharad Agarwal, 
Director (DIN: 00652580), Director 

 

(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot 
and details of voting pattern? 

 During the Financial Year 2024-25 Special Resolution were not passed 
through Postal Ballot and the special Resolution passed at the last Annual 
General Meeting of the company were not put through Postal Ballot.  
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(d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise?  -  Not Applicable. 

4) RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS :  

The Company is committed to facilitate the exercise of shareholders rights for 
voting on all crucial decisions, by making available voting through electronic 
means. The shareholders are given an opportunity at the general meetings to 
ask questions to the Board and the same are replied to by the Managing 
Director. Information regarding the general meeting is given to the shareholders 
in advance and no shareholder has any control disproportionate to their 
holdings. The Company has only one class of equity shares.  

The shareholders have the right to appoint/re-appoint the Directors on the 
Board. The Company has a framework to avoid Insider trading and abusive self 
dealing. The Company has adopted the Code of Fair Disclosure Practices for 
Prevention of Insider Trading and the same has been put up on its website.  

The Company respects the rights of its shareholders and provides effective 
redressed mechanism for violation of their rights, if any. All information is 
provided on the website of the Company on a timely and regular basis to enable 
the shareholders to participate in Corporate Governance process. The Company 
also encourages employee participation in the Corporate Governance process 
through a strong whistle blower mechanism and conducts regular trainings to 
ensure employees are aware of the options available to them.  

The Company follows all disclosure requirements on all material matters and has 
a strong Board fully conversant with the requirements of law. The Board fulfils 
all the key functions as required by it and also does the needful to carry out its 
other responsibilities.  

Company believes that Corporate Governance is a tool to generate long term 
wealth and create value for all its stakeholders be it shareholders, customers, 
creditors, employees etc. 

5) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION :  

The quarterly / half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are sent 
to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed immediately 
after they have been taken on record by the Board. The same are usually 
published in Financial Express/ Arthik Lipi Newspapers. The Company is also 
providing information relating to the material events from time to the investors 
and to the public at large by faxing the information to the Stock Exchanges as 
and when happened. These results are not distributed / sent individually to the 
shareholders. A Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of 
Company's Annual Report 
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In terms of the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in India, the un-
audited financial results as well as audited financial results and Shareholding 
Pattern and Corporate Governance Compliance and all important information are 
electronically submitted, unless there are technical difficulties and are displayed 
on our website i.e. www.associatedceremics.com  

6) GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

(a) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING : 

(b) Market Price Data: High-Low During each month in the last Financial 
Year (In Rs.) 

The Market High & Low during the year are not available since the share have 
not been started to trade in the market. However, the company had obtained 
Trading approval from BSE Limited.  

AGM Date, Time 
and Venue 

Thursday, the 25th day of September, 2025 at 3:00 
P.M. through video conferencing (“VC”)/ other 
audiovisual means (“OAVM”) 

 As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, particulars of Director seeking 
re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM are given 
herein and in the Annexure to the Notice of the AGM 
to be held on 30.08.2025 

Financial Calendar 1st April, 2024 To 31st March, 2025 
Date of Book 

Closure 
19th September, 2025 to 25th September, 2025 
(Inclusive of both days) 

Listing on Stock 
Exchanges 

 
 

 

1)  BSE Limited  [ Scrip Code : 531168 ] 
     Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
     Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001 
     Web: http://www.bseindia.com 
2) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited [Scrip Code: 
11067] 
     7, Lyons Range,   
     B. B. D. Bagh,  
     Kolkata-700001, West Bengal  

Demat ISIN No. for  
CDSL and NSDL 

INE771E01010 

Listing Fee  Paid to the exchanges for the year 2024-2025 
Custodial Fees Paid to the NSDL & CDSL for the year 2024-25 
Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents 

Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.   
3A Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B 
Kolkata-700017 (W.B.) 
Tel.: +91 33 2280 6616 / 17 / 18 
Fax: +91 33 2280 6619  
E-mail: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 
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7) DISCLOSURES 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 there were no materially 
significant related party transactions with the Company's Directors or their 
relatives. The Company has complied with all the statutory requirements 
comprised in the Listing Regulations/Guidelines/Rules of the Stock 
Exchanges/SEBI/other Statutory Authorities.  

Category of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2025: 

CATEGORY NO. OF SHARES % 

Public 594330 29.07 

Domestic Bodies Corporate 317495 15.53 

Clearing Member, NRI & Clearing 
Corpo. 

310 0.02 

Promoters & Associates 11,31,645 

 

55.34 

Directors and their relatives 950 0.04 

TOTAL 2044730 100.000 
 

MANAGEMENT   DISCUSSION   AND   ANALYSIS   REPORT 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report for the year ended on 31st March, 2025. This Report have been included in 
consonance with the Code of Corporate Governance as approved by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 

The Management of the Company is presenting herein the overview, opportunities, 
threats and overall strategy of the Company and its outlook for the future. This 
outlook is based on Management’s own assessment and it may vary due to 
Economic and other future developments in the Country. 

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 
India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world as per the 
Central Statistics Organisation (CSO) and International Monetary Fund (IMF). 
According to the Economic Survey 2024- 25 the Indian economy is expected to 
grow at 6.9 to 8.10 per cent during FY 2024-25, despite the uncertainties in the 
global market. 
Uncertainties, however, continue to loom over the global economy, which could 
have a cascading effect on the Indian economy. The build-up of financial 
vulnerabilities remains a key concern. Non-financial corporate debt has also grown 
rapidly in some emerging markets, necessitating a policy response. Other factors 
that could impact global investments are increase in trade barriers and regulatory 
realignments, while a rise in commodity prices could also adversely affect the non-
OPEC (Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries) markets. 

25
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The overall forecast for the coming years appears positive, with growth rates for 
many of the Eurozone economies having been revised upwards. Germany, Italy and 
the Netherlands are, in particular, reflecting stronger momentum in domestic 
demand and higher external demand. In EMDEs (Emerging Markets & Domestic 
Economies), pickup of growth in commodity exports (forecast to rise to an average 
of 3.80% in 2023-24) is expected to boost growth to an average of 4.93% in 2024-
25.  

The Advance Estimates released by the Central Statistics Office, the growth rate of 
GDP at constant market prices for the year 2023-2024 is placed  at 7.0%, as 
against 6.5% in 2024-25. The major driver for this estimate is the Government final 
consumption expenditure in the current year.  

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 
There are several large and profitable opportunities for this sector and the sector 
plays an important role in the Indian Financial system. The key is for the sector to 
grow in a prudential manner while focusing on financial innovation and in having in 
place, the adequate risk management systems and procedures before entering into 
risky areas. 
Financing needs in India have risen with the notable growth recorded by the 
economy over the past decade. NBFCs have played a major role in meeting this 
need, complementing banks and other  financial institutions. The regulator 
constantly endeavors to balance the multiple objectives of financial stability, 
consumer and depositor protection and regulatory arbitrage concerns. 

The financial sector in India predominantly comprises of the banking sector, with 
commercial banks accounting for more than 58% of the total assets held by the 
financial system. However, the role of the this sector has been growing. The 
balance sheet of this sector expanded by 16.5% during financial year 2022-23.  

STRENGTHS : 
At ACL we provide financial services through simple processes and simple 
procedures in sanction and disbursement of credit as well as timely, friendly and 
flexible terms of repayment aligned to the unique features of its clientele. Easy and 
fast appraisal and disbursements make the Company the preferred choice for many 
of its customers Customer Insight: 
 
CHALLENGES :  
 
Newer regulatory updates pose a constant challenge for smooth operations of the 
Company. With constant updates governing the functional aspects of financial 
institutions, there lie unseen challenges in the coming years. Focus on a particular 
market segment might affect the Company’s portfolio & sustainability.  
 
OPPORTUNITIES :  
 
Business opportunities for finance companies are enormous as the new areas and 
segments are being explored. A larger segment of customers remain un-served by 
Banks and large sized Finance Companies. Your Company on its part is also well 
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poised to seize new opportunities as they come. A rural middle income boom has 
led to rise in rural incomes. This has been fuelled by increased support prices and 
welfare schemes initiated by the government. Per capita Gross Domestic Product 
has grown faster in India’s rural areas than in its urban centers. New opportunities 
like home equity, personal finance, and a foray into factoring and bill payment for 
the rural hard-to-reach customer may take the Company to new scales of success. 
 
RISING PER CAPITA INCOME :  

Increase in per capita income leads to creation of increasing wealth and positively 
impacts disposable incomes. This results in a significant investment multiplier effect 
on the Indian economy, further leading to increasing consumerism and wealth 
creation and positively impacting savings. Rising per capita income and stability in 
economic growth have played a role in increasing the pace of urbanization in the 
country. One of the notable factors behind the growth in the housing industry has 
been easy availability of finance. Availability of low interest rate finance has 
increased disbursement of loans among several financial players.  

THREATS : 

The major threat being faced by finance companies are regulatory changes, interest 
rates hiked by RBI, high inflation etc. The Company is also facing stiff competition 
from banks / financial institutions due to their ability to raise low cost funds which 
enables them to provide funds at much cheaper rate.  Higher cost of funds might 
lead to reduced bottom line for the Company. Also, a lesser interest spread, or 
higher cost of lending might lead to customers turning away to cheaper source of 
funds. Asset quality deterioration may not only wipe the profits out of the Company 
but eat into its net worth. The Company must ensure it maintains minimal 
delinquency levels. 

WEAKNESS : 

The Company does not have strong network & link at remote areas of villages. The 
Company has significant business presence in the state of West Bengal only. The 
Company does not have all India based network and establishments to reach out to 
large segment of people in the country in both semi-urban and rural areas whereas 
more than 90% of the unorganized sector has no link with banks and 60% of the 
rural consumers do not have bank accounts.  

RISKS & CONCERNS 

Your Company’s growth and profitability are dependent on the functioning of Capital 
Markets. The Company is exposed to several market risks like credit risk, liquidity 
risk and interest rate risk. The volatility of the capital markets in which your 
Company operates is also a major cause of concern to the Company. 

Risk is managed by using a set of credit norms and policies, as approved by the 
Board. SSL has a structured and standardized process including customer selection 
criteria, comprehensive credit risk assessment, which encompasses analysis of 
relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain the credit worthiness 
of the borrower. 
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

The details of the financial performance of the Company is given in the Directors’ 
Report. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with its size and 
business and has vigilant process to monitor the internal control system. The 
management has devised its internal control system to safeguard its assets, 
efficiency in operations and compliance of statutes.  The Audit Committee of the 
Company consisting of Non-Executive Independent Directors, periodically reviews 
and recommends the financial statements of the Company. The Audit Committee 
also monitors the implemented suggestions. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The Company strongly believes that its success lies on its employees achieving their 
personal and professional goals. The Company’s constant endeavour is that its 
employees feel invested  in,  and  in  turn, they invest in the Company, its growth 
and mission. 

To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, 
the Company has framed a policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and reviews the same 
periodically. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT  

Statements in the MD&A, describing the Company’s objective, projections and 
estimates, are forward looking statements and progressive within the meaning of 
applicable security laws and regulations. These statements involve a number of 
risks, uncertainties and other factors namely; economic conditions, Government 
Policies that could cause actual results to differ materially from those that may be 
implied by these forward looking statements. 

 For and on behalf of board of directors 

 

                 (Arun Agarwal) 
Place: Kolkata                                            Managing Director  
Date : 30th Day of May, 2025                           DIN : 01660148
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ANNEXURE-1 
 

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

To,  
ASSOCIATED CERAMICS LTD 
17 GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE4TH FLOOR,  
Kolkata-700013 
 
I, Arun Agarwal (DIN: 01660148), Managing Director of the Company, hereby 
declare that the Board of Directors have laid down a Code of Conduct for the Board 
Members and Senior Management of the Company and the Board Members and 
Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the said Code of Conduct. 
 
     For and on behalf of board of directors 

 

                 (Arun Agarwal) 
Place: Kolkata                                            Managing Director  
Date : 30th Day of May, 2025                           DIN : 01660148
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ANNEXURE-II 
 

CEO and CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

We have reviewed financial statements and the Cash Flow statement for the financial year 2024-
25 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or Contain statements that might be misleading ; 

 
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 

comply with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year that are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company’s code of conduct. 

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take 
to rectify these deficiencies. 

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
1. Significant changes in the internal control during the year; 
 
2. Significant changes in the accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same 

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
 
3. Instances of significant fraud and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or 

an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system. 
 

For and on behalf of board of directors 

 

 

                 (Arun Agarwal) 
Place: Kolkata                                                      Managing Director  
Date : 30th Day of May, 2025                                  DIN : 01660148 
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Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members 
ASSOCIATED CERMAMICS LIMITED 
CIN: L26919WB1970PLC027835 
17 GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE, 4TH FLOOR,   
KOLKATA-700013 
 
We, KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing Company Secretaries, have 
conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/S. ASSOCIATED CERAMICS 
LTD. (hereinafter referred as ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 
(‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We, KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing Company Secretaries, have 
examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, 
according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; 
 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 
thereunder; 

 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made 
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thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): 
 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations,2015; 
 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; No events / actions occurred 
during the Audit Period in pursuance of this regulation; 
 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 – No events / actions occurred during the 
Audit Period in pursuance of this regulation; 
 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008 – No events / actions occurred during the 
Audit Period in pursuance of this regulation; 
 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; 
 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009 – No events / actions occurred during the Audit Period 
in pursuance of this regulation; 
 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998 – No events / actions occurred during the Audit Period 
in pursuance of this regulation; and 
 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015; and  

 
(vi) Other specifically applicable laws to the Company. 
 
I report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-
check basis, the Company has complied with all the laws applicable specifically to the 
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Company except the following: 
 

1. The Company was imposed late Fine under Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 for delayed submission of thirty four days for the quarter ended 
30th June, 2024 by The BSE Limited of Rs. 1,70,000/- plus GST. However, the 
Company has paid the same. 
 

2. The Company was imposed late Fine under Regulation 19(1)/(2) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 for delayed submission of thirty four days for the quarter ended 
30th June, 2024 by The BSE Limited of Rs. 68,000/- plus GST. However, the Company 
has paid the same. 
 

3. Mrs. SUMONA BOSE, Independent Director has not registered under the Database of 
Independent Directors.  

 
4. Registration of Mr. NITESH SINGH, Independent Director, is expired under the 

Database of Independent Directors and renewal is due as on date. 
 

5. Mr. Binod Kumar Suhasaria has expired on 25th January, 2024 and the Company has 
appointed Mr. Nitesh Singh as an Independent Director of the Company on 30th May, 
2024. Therefore, the Company is non compliant of Regulation 17(1) and 19(1)/(2) of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for thirty four (34) days for the quarter ended 30th 
June, 2024. 
 

6. The Company has redeemed 2,267 10% Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each at par 
and 3,742 10% Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each, out of 7,483 10% Preference 
Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each of the Company, at Rs. 6,000/- each aggregating to Rs. 
2,47,19,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Forty-Seven Lakh and Nineteen Thousand only) as 
approved by Board of Directors at its meeting held on 4th September, 2024 and Form 
PAS-6 for such affect has been filed delayed by the company with additional fine to 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 09th April, 2025. 
 

7. Further, The Company has again redeemed remaining 3,741 10% Preference Shares of 
Rs. 1,000/- each, at Rs. 6000/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,24,46,000/- (Rupees Two 
Crore Twenty Four Lakh and Forty Six Thousand only) as approved by Board of 
Directors at its meeting held on 10th February, 2025 and Form PAS-6 for such affect is 
still pending to file by the Company as on date. 
 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial 
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 
I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems 
and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable 
Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company. 
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

Page 58 of 113



    KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES 

41/A, Tara Chand Dutta Street, Kolkata-700 073 
Email:kirti.sharma2593@yahoo.com, Contact No.+91 8240868503 / 9051328410 

I further report that: 
 

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors including Woman Director. 
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

 Adequate notice is given to all directors for the Board Meetings, including 
Committees thereof, along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting by the directors. 

 All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out 
unanimously and recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 
Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

 
I further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such 
as direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of 
accounts have not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to 
review by the statutory financial auditors, tax auditors and other designated 
professionals. 
 
I further report that as per the explanations given to me and the representation made 
by the Management and relied upon by me, there are adequate systems and processes 
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the audit period, there was no other event/action having 
major bearing on the Company’s affairs. 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 

Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 
Peer Review Certificate no. 6789/2025 
UDIN: A041645G000500477 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2025 
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‘ANNEXURE A’ 
To, 
The Members 
ASSOCIATED CERMAMICS LIMITED 
CIN: L26919WB1970PLC027835 
17 GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE, 4TH FLOOR,   
KOLKATA-700013 
 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 
 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company. 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 
Peer Review Certificate no. 6789/2025 
UDIN: A041645G000500477 
 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2025 
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF 
ASSOCIATED CERMAMICS LIMITED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
(Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 Dated February 8, 2019) 

 
To, 
The Members 
ASSOCIATED CERMAMICS LIMITED 
CIN: L26919WB1970PLC027835 
17 GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE, 4TH FLOOR,   
KOLKATA-700013 
 
We, KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined:. 
 
(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by the 

ASSOCIATED CERMAMICS LIMITED ((“the listed entity”), 
 

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges, 
 

(c) website of the listed entity, 
 

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this 
certification, 

 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the 
provisions of : 

 
(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the 

Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and 
(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder 

and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”); 

 
The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have 
been examined, include: 
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018;-Not applicable during the Review Period; 
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not 

applicable during the Review Period; 
(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 

2014 - Not applicable during the Review Period; 
(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021- Not applicable during the Review Period; 
(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client.  

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 
2018;  

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not 
applicable during the Review Period; 

(k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;- 
Not applicable during the Review Period; and 

(l) Other applicable regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder; 
 
The Company has redeemed 2,267 10% Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each at par and 
3,742 10% Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each, out of 7,483 10% Preference Shares of 
Rs. 1,000/- each of the Company, at Rs. 6,000/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,47,19,000/- 
(Rupees Two Crore Forty-Seven Lakh and Nineteen Thousand only) as approved by Board 
of Directors at its meeting held on 4th September, 2024 and Form PAS-6 for such affect has 
been filed delayed by the company with additional fine to The Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs on 09th April, 2025. 
 
Further, The Company has again redeemed remaining 3,741 10% Preference Shares of Rs. 
1,000/- each, at Rs. 6000/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,24,46,000/- (Rupees Two Crore 
Twenty Four Lakh and Forty Six Thousand only) as approved by Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on 10th February, 2025 and Form PAS-6 for such affect is still pending to file 
by the Company as on date. 

and based on the above examination, We hereby report that, during the Review Period: 
 
(a)  The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 

guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:- 
Sr. 

No. 
Compliance 

Requirement 

(Regulations/ 

circulars/ 

guidelines 

including 

specific clause) 

Regulation/ 

Circular No. 

Deviations Action 

Taken 

by 

Type of 

Action 

Details of 

Violation 

Fine 

Amount 

Observatio

ns/ Re- 

marks of 

the Prac- 

ticing 

Compa ny 

Sec retary 

Manage- 

ment Re- 

sponse 

Re- 

marks 

1. Regulation 

17(1) 

Regulation 

17(1) 

The listed entity 
delayed in 
appointment of  
Independent 
Director on 
account of death 
of Mr. Binod 
Kumar Suhasaria. 
Hence, penalty 
levied by BSE 
for the period 
ending June, 30, 
2024. 

BSE Fine Violation of 
Regulation 17 
(1) of SEBI 
LODR  

 

   Rs. 1,70,000/- 

+ applicable 

GST 

The 
Management 

has paid 
penalty 

amounting Rs. 
170000/- plus 

GST. 

The 
Management 
confirm that 

they will 
ensure 

timely filing 
next time.  

 

The 
Manageme
nt confirm 
that they 

will ensure 
timely filing 
next time.  

 

2. Regulation 

19(1)/ 19(2) 

Regulation 

19(1)/ 19(2) 

The listed entity 
delayed in 
appointment of  
Independent 
Director on 
account of death 
of Mr. Binod 
Kumar Suhasaria. 
Hence, penalty 
levied by BSE 
for the period 
ending June, 30, 
2024. 

BSE Fine Violation of 
Regulation 
19(1)/ 19(2) of 
SEBI LODR  
 

   Rs. 68,000/- 

+ applicable 

GST 

The 
Management 

has paid 
penalty 

amounting Rs. 
68,000/- plus 

GST. 

The 
Management 
confirm that 

they will 
ensure 

timely filing 
next time.  

 

The 
Manageme
nt confirm 
that they 

will ensure 
timely filing 
next time.  
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(b)  The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in 

previous reports:  
 

Sr. 

No. 

Observations/ 

Remarks of the 

Practicing Company 

Secretary in the 

previous reports  

 

Observations 

made in the 

secretarial 

compliance 

report for the 

year ended …..  

(the years are to 

be mentioned)  

Compliance 

Requirement 

(Regulations/circ

ulars/guidelines 

including specific 

clause)  

 

Details of violation / 

deviations and actions 

taken / penalty 

imposed, if any, on the 

listed entity  

 

Remedial actions, 

if any, taken by 

the listed entity  

 

Comments of the PCS 

on the actions taken 

by the listed entity  

 

1. The Management has 
paid penalty 

amounting Rs. 5000 
plus GST. 

For the Financial 
year 2023-2024 

Regulation 23 (9)- 
related party 
transaction 

disclosure for the 
period ending 
September, 30, 

2023. 

The listed entity delay in 
submission of related party 
transaction disclosure for 

the period ending 
September, 30, 2023. 

The Management 
has paid penalty 

amounting Rs. 5000 
plus GST. 

The Management has 
paid penalty amounting 

Rs. 5000 plus GST. 

 
(c)  I/we hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed 

entity with the following requirements:  
 
S. 
No. 
 
 

Particulars Compliance 
Status 
(Yes/No/NA) 

Observations/ Remarks by 
PCS 

1. Secretarial Standards: 
 
The compliances of the listed entity 
are in accordance with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries 
India (ICSI). 

Yes Not Applicable 

2. Adoption and timely updation of the 
Policies: 
 
 All applicable policies under SEBI 

Regulations are adopted with the 
approval of board of directors of 
the listed entities 

 All the policies are in conformity 
with SEBI Regulations and has been 
reviewed & timely updated as per 
the 
regulations/circulars/guidelines 
issued by SEBI. 

Yes Not Applicable 

3. Maintenance and disclosures on 
Website: 
 
 The Listed entity is maintaining a 

functional website 
 Timely dissemination of the 

Yes Not Applicable 
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documents/ information under a 
separate section on the website 

 Web-links provided in annual 
corporate governance reports 
under Regulation 27(2) are 
accurate and specific which re-
directs to the relevant 
document(s)/ section of the 
website 

4. Disqualification of Director: 
 
None of the Director of the Company 
are disqualified under Section 164 of 
Companies Act, 2013 

Yes Not Applicable 

5. Details related to Subsidiaries of listed 
entities: 
 
(a) Identification of material 
subsidiary companies 
(b) Requirements with respect to 
disclosure of material as well as other 
subsidiaries 

Not Applicable The Listed entity does not 
have any subsidiary 
company. 

6. Preservation of Documents: 
 
The listed entity is preserving and 
maintaining records as prescribed 
under SEBI Regulations and disposal 
of records as per Policy of 
Preservation of Documents and 
Archival policy prescribed under the 
LODR Regulations. 

Yes Not Applicable 

7.  Performance Evaluation: 
 
The listed entity has conducted 
performance evaluation of the Board, 
Independent Directors and the 
Committees at the start of every 
financial year as prescribed in SEBI 
Regulations. 

Yes Not Applicable 

8. Related Party Transactions: 
 
(a) The listed entity has obtained prior 
approval of Audit Committee for all 
Related party transactions 
(b) In case no prior approval obtained, 
the listed entity shall provide detailed 
reasons along with confirmation 
whether the transactions were 
subsequently 
approved/ratified/rejected by the 
Audit committee. 

Yes Not Applicable 

9. Disclosure of events or information: Yes Not Applicable 
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The listed entity has provided all the 
required disclosure(s) under 
Regulation 30 along with Schedule III 
of the LODR Regulations within the 
time limits prescribed thereunder. 

10.  Prohibition of Insider Trading: 
 
The listed entity is in compliance with 
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. 

Yes Not Applicable 

11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock 
Exchange(s), if any: 
 
No actions taken against the listed 
entity/ its promoters/ directors/ 
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges (including under the 
Standard Operating Procedures issued 
by SEBI through various circulars) 
under SEBI Regulations and circulars/ 
guidelines issued thereunder (or) 
 
 
 
 
The actions taken against the listed 
entity/ its promoters/ directors/ 
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges are specified in the last 
column. 

Yes The Company was imposed 
late Fine under Regulation 
17(1) and 19(1)/(2) of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 
for delayed submission of 
Thirty Four days for the 
quarter ended 30th June, 
2024 by The BSE Limited of 
Rs. 170000/- and Rs. 
68000/- plus GST 
respectively.  
 
However, the Company has 
paid the same. 

12. Resignation of statutory auditors from 
the listed entity or its material 
subsidiaries 
 
In case of resignation of statutory 
auditor from the listed entity or any of 
its material subsidiaries during the 
financial year, the listed entity and / 
or its material subsidiary(ies) has / 
have complied with paragraph 6.1 and 
6.2 of section V-D of chapter V of the 
Master Circular on compliance with 
the provisions of the LODR 
Regulations by listed entities. 

Not Applicable 
 
 

No such event occurred 
during the Financial year 

2024-25  
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13. No additional non-compliances 
observed: 
 
No additional non-compliance 
observed for any of the SEBI 
regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 
except as reported above. 

Not Applicable 
 
 

Mrs. SUMONA BOSE, 
Independent Director has 
not registered under the 
Database of Independent 
Directors.  
 
Registration of Mr. NITESH 
SINGH, Independent 
Director, is expired under 
the Database of Independent 
Directors and renewal is due 
as on date. 
 
As per the verification and 
confirmation provided to us 
by the Company, there is no 
additional non-compliance 
observed for any SEBI 
regulation/circular/guidance 
note, etc. 

 

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review: 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and 
information furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and 
information. This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and 
Books of Accounts of the listed entity. 

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A 
(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
listed entity. 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
 
 
Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 
Peer Review Certificate no. 3710/2023 
UDIN: A041645G000408726 
 
Date : 22nd May, 2025 
Place : Kolkata 

KIRTI 
SHARMA

Digitally signed 
by KIRTI SHARMA 
Date: 2025.05.22 
14:33:47 +05'30'
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     KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES 

 

 
 

41/A, Tara Chand Dutta Street, Kolkata-700 073 
Email:kirti.sharma2593@yahoo.com, Contact No.+91 8240868503 / 9051328410 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
The Members 
ASSOCIATED CERMAMICS LIMITED 

CIN: L26919WB1970PLC027835 
17 GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE, 4TH FLOOR,   
KOLKATA-700013 

 
We, KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing Company Secretaries, have 
examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and the disclosures received 
from the Directors of ASSOCIATED CERMAMICS LIMITED, having CIN 
L26919WB1970PLC027835, and registered office at 17 GANESH CHANDRA 

AVENUE4TH FLOOR, KOLKATA-700013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub 
clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications 
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal 
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025, have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority: 
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     KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES 

 

 
 

41/A, Tara Chand Dutta Street, Kolkata-700 073 
Email:kirti.sharma2593@yahoo.com, Contact No.+91 8240868503 / 9051328410 

 
 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of 

appointment in 
Company 

1. Mr. ARUN AGARWAL 01660148 23/03/1976 
2. Mr. BIMAL AGARWAL 00652555 01/07/2015 
3. Mr. SHARAD AGARWAL 00652580 01/07/2015 
4. Mrs. SUMANA BOSE 08305755 07/01/2019 
5. Mr. NITESH SINGH 08751700 30/05/2024 
6. Mr. ABHISHEK AGARWAL 10054271 22/03/2023 

  
Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the 
Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 
 
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 
 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 

 

Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 
Peer Review Certificate no. 6789/2025 
UDIN: A041645G000500488 
 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2025 
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